
 

Democratic Services democratic.services@brighton-hove.gov.uk 

 
 
 

Title: Licensing Panel (Licensing Act 2003 
Functions) 

Date: 16 February 2009 

Time: 10.00am 

Venue Committee Room 3, Brighton Town Hall 

Members: Councillors: 
Marsh, Simson and C Theobald 

Contact: Jane Clarke 
Democratic Services Officer 
01273 291064 
jane.clarke@brighton-hove.gov.uk 

 
The Town Hall has facilities for wheelchair users, 
including lifts and toilets 

 

T  

An Induction loop operates to enhance sound for 
anyone wearing a hearing aid or using a transmitter 
and infra red hearing aids are available for use 
during the meeting.  If you require any further 
information or assistance, please contact the 
receptionist on arrival. 

  

 FIRE / EMERGENCY EVACUATION PROCEDURE 
 

If the fire alarm sounds continuously, or if you are 
instructed to do so, you must leave the building by 
the nearest available exit.  You will be directed to 
the nearest exit by council staff.  It is vital that you 
follow their instructions: 
 

• You should proceed calmly; do not run and do 
not use the lifts; 

• Do not stop to collect personal belongings; 

• Once you are outside, please do not wait 
immediately next to the building, but move 
some distance away and await further 
instructions; and 

• Do not re-enter the building until told that it is 
safe to do so. 

 



 

 
 

Democratic Services: Meeting Layout             

Residents 
Representative 

Responsible 
Authorities 

 

Responsible 
Authorities 

Licensing 
Officer 

Democratic 
Services 
Officer 

Lawyer Member Chair Member 

Applicant Applicant 

Residents 
Representative 

Public Seating 

Press 



LICENSING PANEL (LICENSING ACT 2003 FUNCTIONS) 

 
 

AGENDA 
 

Part One Page 
 

106. TO APPOINT A CHAIRMAN FOR THE MEETING  

 

107. PROCEDURAL BUSINESS  

 (a) Declaration of Substitutes - Where Councillors are unable to attend a 
meeting, a substitute Member from the main Licensing Committee 
may attend, speak and vote in their place for that meeting. 

 
(b) Declarations of Interest by all Members present of any personal 

interests in matters on the agenda, the nature of any interest and 
whether the Members regard the interest as prejudicial under the 
terms of the Code of Conduct.  

 
(c) Exclusion of Press and Public - To consider whether, in view of the 

nature of the business to be transacted, or the nature of the 
proceedings, the press and public should be excluded from the 
meeting when any of the following items are under consideration. 

 
NOTE:  Any item appearing in Part 2 of the Agenda states in its 
heading either that it is confidential or the category under which the 
information disclosed in the report is exempt from disclosure and 
therefore not available to the public. 

 
A list and description of the categories of exempt information is 
available for public inspection at Brighton and Hove Town Halls. 

 

 

108. THE BLACK HORSE, 16-17 MONTAGUE PLACE, BRIGHTON, BN2 
1JE 

1 - 68 

 Contact Officer: Sarah Ranger Tel: 29-5801  
 Ward Affected: Queen's Park   
 

109. BOWLPLEX, BRIGHTON MARINA VILLAGE, BRIGHTON, BN2 5UT 69 - 94 

 Contact Officer: Becky Keely Tel: 01273 292100  
 Ward Affected: Rottingdean Coastal   
 
 



LICENSING PANEL (LICENSING ACT 2003 FUNCTIONS) 

 
 

The City Council actively welcomes members of the public and the press to attend its 
meetings and holds as many of its meetings as possible in public.  Provision is also made 
on the agendas for public questions to committees and details of how questions can be 
raised can be found on the website and/or on agendas for the meetings. 
 
The closing date for receipt of public questions and deputations for the next meeting is 12 
noon on the fifth working day before the meeting. 
 
Agendas and minutes are published on the council’s website www.brighton-hove.gov.uk.  
Agendas are available to view five working days prior to the meeting date. 
 
Meeting papers can be provided, on request, in large print, in Braille, on audio tape or on 
disc, or translated into any other language as requested. 
 
For further details and general enquiries about this meeting contact Jane Clarke, (01273 
291064, email jane.clarke@brighton-hove.gov.uk) or email democratic.services@brighton-
hove.gov.uk  
 

 

Date of Publication - Friday, 6 February 2009 

 

 

 



Licensing Panel  

(Licensing Act 2003 Functions) 

Agenda Item 108 
Brighton & Hove City Council 

 

 

Subject: Review of a Premises Licence under the Licensing 
Act 2003 for Black Horse, 16-17 Montague Place, 
Brighton, East Sussex, BN2 1JE (Admiral Taverns 
(Nevada) Ltd) 

Date of Meeting: 16 February 2009 

Report of: Assistant Director Public Safety 

Contact Officer: Name:  Sarah Ranger Tel: 29-5801 

 E-mail: sarah.ranger@brighton-hove.gov.uk 

Wards Affected:  Queen’s Park 

 

FOR GENERAL RELEASE 
 
1. SUMMARY AND POLICY CONTEXT  
 
1.1 To review a Premises Licence for Black Horse under the Licensing Act 

2003. 
 
2. SUMMARY OF REVIEW PROCESS 
 
2.1 The existing licence is attached at Appendix A. 
 
2.2. Brighton & Hove City Council is both the relevant licensing authority and a 

responsible authority in respect of any premises, and may in its capacity 
apply under Section 51 of the Licensing Act 2003 for a review of any 
premises licence in respect of the premises. 

  
2.3 An application was received by the Licensing Authority from Sussex Police, 

to review the licence granted to the premises known as Black Horse, 16 – 
17 Montague Place, Brighton, BN2 1JE. 

 
2.4  The grounds for the review relates to the following Licensing objectives:  
  

• Prevention of Crime and Disorder 

• Protection of Children from Harm  
 

Full details of the grounds for the review and a copy of evidence submitted 
by Sussex Police is attached, see Appendix B.  

 
2.5  At this hearing the licensing authority must: 
 

• Consider the application made in accordance with Section 51   

1



• Consider any relevant representations 

• Take such steps (if any) as are considered necessary for the 
promotion of the Licensing objectives. These steps are: 
 
- to modify the conditions of the licence; 
- to exclude a licensable activity; 
- to remove the designated premises supervisor from the licence; 
- to suspend the licence for a period not exceeding 3 months; or 
- to revoke the licence. 
 

And for this purpose the conditions of a premises licence are modified if any 
of them is altered or omitted or any new condition is added. It may provide 
that the modification or exclusion have effect for a specified period not 
exceeding 3 months.  The determination, if not completed at the hearing, 
shall be within 5 working days of the hearing.  Such determinations do not 
have effect until after the appeal period or, if an appeal is lodged, until after 
the appeal is disposed of. 

 
3 REPRESENTATIONS RECEIVED 
 
3.1 Details of the representations made are notified to applicants on receipt by 

the Licensing Authority using a pro-forma.  A summary appears below. 
 
3.2 One representation has been received from Trading Standards on the 

grounds of the Protection of Children from Harm, supporting the application 
submitted by Sussex Police seeking revocation of the Premises Licence. 

 
3.3 Full details of the representation are attached in Appendix C. 
 
4. COMMENTARY ON LICENSING POLICY 
 
4.1 The following extracts from Brighton & Hove Licensing Policy are 

considered relevant to this application and numbered as they appear in the 
policy: 

 
General 

 
1.2 The licensing objectives are:- 
 

(a) Prevention of crime and disorder; 
(b) Public safety; 
(c) Prevention of public nuisance; 
(d) Protection of children from harm. 

 
1.3 Licensing is about regulating licensable activities on licensed 

premises, by qualifying clubs and at temporary events. Any 
conditions attached to various authorisations will be focussed on 
matters which are in the control of individual licensees and others 
with relevant authorisations, i.e. the premises and its vicinity. 

 

2



1.5 Each application will be given individual consideration on its merit. 
Nothing in this policy shall undermine the right of any individual to 
apply under the terms of the Act for a variety of permissions and to 
have any such application considered on its individual merits. 
Similarly, nothing in this policy shall override the right of any person 
to make representations on an application or seek a review of a 
licence or certificate where provision has been made for them to do 
so in the Act. 

 
1.15 Licensing law is not the primary mechanism for the general control 

of nuisance and anti-social behaviour by individuals once they are 
away from the licensed premises and, therefore, beyond the direct 
control of the individual, club or business holding the licence, 
certificate or authorisation concerned. Licensing is about the control 
of licensed premises, qualifying clubs and temporary events within 
the terms of the Act, and the conditions attached to licences, 
certificates and permissions will be focused on matters which are 
within the control of the licensee and will centre on the premises 
themselves and their immediate vicinity. When considering these 
terms and conditions the licensing authority will primarily focus on 
the direct impact of the activities taking place at the licensed 
premises on members of the public living, working or engaged in 
normal activity in the area concerned.  

 
In respect of the prevention of crime and disorder 
 

2.2 The licensing authority acknowledges that training and good 
management play a key part in preventing alcohol and drug related 
crime.  The authority recommends that all licensees of on-licensed 
premises attend training programmes which will raise their 
awareness of the issues relating to drugs and violence in licensed 
premises, and that suitable training be extended to all bar staff and 
door staff so that drug dealers and users will be deterred from using 
licensed premises for illegal purposes and that incidents of violence 
in licensed premises will be reduced.  Licensees are also 
encouraged to attend training programmes to help identify children 
at risk and issues of basic child protection. 

 
2.3 It is expected that the designated premises supervisor (DPS) will 

spend a significant amount of time on the premises. When not on 
the premises it will be essential that the DPS is contactable, 
particularly should problems arise with the premises. 

 
2.5.1 Diversity of premises 
 

This attempts to ensure that there is a mix of the different types of 
licensed premises, particularly in areas where there is a high density 
of such premises.  It will provide resilience against changing trends 
and attract a more diverse range of customers from different age 
groups, different communities of interest and with different attitudes 

3



to alcohol consumption.  It gives potential for positively changing the 
ambience of the city or an area of it.  This in turn may have a 
positive effect in reducing people’s fear of crime and in increasing 
the number of evening visitors to the city centre. The Community 
Safety Strategy recognises that too many single uses in a confined 
area and patrons turning out onto the streets at the same time, may 
create opportunities for violent crime and public disorder and 
therefore encourages mixed use venues, varying hours of business 
and a wider age balance. 

 
2.5.5 Care, control and supervision of premises 
 

The effective management and supervision of a venue is a key 
factor in reducing crime and disorder, both within it and outside.  The 
Police will consider the applicants, objecting to the application where 
appropriate. The Police will suggest crime prevention measures in 
relation to, for example, the internal layout of the premises, close 
circuit television, help points, lighting and security staff.  The Police 
may ask for conditions which support such measures to be imposed 
when planning or licensing applications are granted, e.g. type of 
licence, capacity, opening time restrictions. 

 
2.7 High volume vertical drinking establishments (HVVD’s) may, where 

necessary and appropriate, have conditions attached relating to: a 
prescribed capacity, the ratio of chairs and tables to be provided for 
customers based on capacity and the presence of SIA registered 
security teams. 

 
2.8 Enforcement issues will be considered in the light of any relevant 

enforcement policies and close links will be sought between all 
enforcing authorities, e.g. through the use of intelligence sharing and 
strategy groups. Such protocols may lead to the targeting of agreed 
high risk and problem premises whilst permitting a lighter touch 
approach in respect of well run premises. 

 
In respect of the protection of children from harm 

 
5.1 Licensees should note the concern of the authority that drink related 

disorder frequently involves under 18’s.  To prevent illegal 
purchases of alcohol by such persons, the committee recommend 
that all licensees should work with a suitable ‘proof of age’ scheme 
and ensure that appropriate identification is requested prior to entry 
and when requesting alcohol, where appropriate.  Appropriate forms 
of identification are currently considered to be those recommended 
by police, trading standards officers and their partners in the 
licensing strategy group. 

 
5.2 It is the committee’s expectation that all staff responsible for the sale 

of intoxicating liquor receive information and advice on the licensing 
laws relating to children and young persons in licensed premises. 

4



Licensed premises staff are required to take reasonable steps to 
prevent under age sales. The licensing authority will not seek to limit 
the access of children to any premises unless it is necessary for the 
prevention of physical, moral or psychological harm to them.   

 
5.4 The licensing authority will not seek to require that access to any 

premises is given to children at all times – under normal 
circumstances this will be left to the discretion of the licensee. The 
following areas give rise to concern in respect of children, who will 
normally be excluded from premises:-  

 

• where there have been convictions for serving alcohol to minors 
or with a reputation for underage drinking; 

• with a known association with drug taking or dealing; 

• where there is a strong element of gambling on the premises; 

• where entertainment of an adult or sexual nature is commonly 
provided; 

• where premises are used primarily or exclusively for the sale and 
consumption of alcohol and there is little or no seating for 
patrons. 

 
Options may include:- 
 

• limitations on the hours when children may be present; 

• age limitations (below 18); 

• limitations or exclusions when certain activities are taking place; 

• requirements for an accompanying adult; 

• full exclusion of people under 18. 
 

5.6 Where children are expected to attend a public entertainment, 
appropriate adult supervision will be required to control the access 
and egress of children and to protect them from harm.  This will 
normally be an adult member of staff for every 100 children.  Where 
the entertainment is music and dancing, 2 persons, licensed by the 
Security Industry Authority (door supervisors) should be employed 
for every 100 children. Nothing in this policy shall seek to override 
child supervision requirements contained in other legislation or 
regulations.  The licensing authority recognises the Children, 
Families and Schools section as being competent to advise on 
matters relating to the protection of children from harm. 

 
Strategic Integration 

 
6.5 Specific conditions may be attached to premises licences to reflect 

local crime prevention strategies.  Such conditions may include the 
use of closed circuit television cameras, the provision and use of 
shatterproof drinking receptacles, drugs and weapons search policy, 
the use of registered door supervisors, specialised lighting 
requirements, hours of opening. 

5



 
6.7 This policy avoids duplication with other regulatory regimes 

wherever possible. 
 

5. FINANCIAL & OTHER IMPLICATIONS: 
  
5.1 Financial Implications: 

 
There are no implications from this report. 
 
Finance Officer Consulted:  Karen Brookshaw  Date: 26.01.2009  
 

5.2 Legal Implications: 
 
  The licensing authority must have regard to the guidance issued by the 

Secretary of State in carrying out its functions. 
 
 The licensing regime imposes general duties on licensing authorities: 

 

• The prevention of crime and disorder 

• Public safety 

• The prevention of public nuisance 

• The protection of children from harm 
 
 Lawyer Consulted: Rebecca Sidell  Date: 26.01.2009 
  
5.3 Equalities Implications: 
 
 Diversity is valued and strong, safe communities are vital to future prosperity. 

Licensing policy aims to protect children from harm including sale and supply of 
alcohol to children. 

  
5.4 Sustainability Implications: 
 

  Licensing policy aims to prevent public nuisance and develop culture of live 
music, dancing and theatre. 

 
5.5 Crime & Disorder Implications:  
 
 Licensing policy aims to prevent crime and disorder and protect public 

safety. 
 
5.6 Risk and Opportunity Management Implications:  
 
  Licensing is a crucial business and employment opportunity and unnecessary 

regulation might lead to legal challenge. 
 
 
 
 

6



5.7 Corporate / Citywide Implications: 
 
The success of the city’s tourism strategy requires a safe, attractive city 
centre to improve competitiveness. The Act may significantly change night 
time economy. 

7



SUPPORTING DOCUMENTATION 
 

Appendices: 
 
1. Appendix A – Part A of Premises Licence 
 
2. Appendix B – Review Application and supporting evidence 
 
3. Appendix C – Representation  
 
4. Appendix D – Map of area 
 
 

Documents in Members’ Rooms 
 
1. Environmental Health & Licensing Service, Brighton & Hove City 

Council (2008): The Licensing Act 2003 – Brighton & Hove City 
Council: Statement of Licensing Policy. 

  
Background Documents 

 
1. Environmental Health & Licensing Service, Brighton & Hove City 

Council (2008): The Licensing Act 2003 – Brighton & Hove City Council 
Statement on Licensing Policy. 

8



 

 

 

APPENDIX A 

Schedule 12 

 Part A Regulation 33, 34 

 

Premises Licence 
Brighton and Hove City Council 

 

Premises Licence Number 1445/3/2007/00835/LAPRET 

 
Part 1 – Premises Details 

 

Postal address of premises, or if none, ordnance survey map reference or description, 
including Post Town, Post Code 
Black Horse 
16 - 17 Montague Place 
Brighton 
East Sussex 
BN2 1JE 

Telephone number  01273 698195 

 

Where the licence is time limited the dates 

 

Licensable activities authorised by the licence  
Performance of Live Music  Performance of Recorded Music  
Other Entertainment falling within Act Sale by Retail of Alcohol  

 

Times the licence authorises the carrying out of licensable activities  
Performance of Live Music - Indoors 
Monday to Thursday 10.00 to 00.00, Friday and Saturday 10.00 to 01.00, Sunday 12.00 to 
00.00 – PLUS: A further additional hour into the morning following every Fri, Sat, Sun and 
Mon for each May Bank Holiday, Spring/Whitsun Bank Holiday, and every August Bank 
Holiday weekend.  A further additional hour into the morning following every Thurs, Fri, Sat, 
Sun and Mon for the Easter Bank Holiday weekend.  A further additional hour every 
Christmas Eve and Boxing Day, to reflect existing New Year's Eve/Day hours. 
Performance of Recorded Music - Indoors           
Monday to Thursday 10.00 to 00.00, Friday and Saturday 10.00 to 01.00, Sunday 12.00 to 
00.00 – PLUS: A further additional hour into the morning following every Fri, Sat, Sun and 
Mon for each May Bank Holiday, Spring/Whitsun Bank Holiday, and every August Bank 
Holiday weekend.  A further additional hour into the morning following every Thurs, Fri, Sat, 
Sun and Mon for the Easter Bank Holiday weekend.  A further additional hour every 
Christmas Eve and Boxing Day, to reflect existing New Year's Eve/Day hours. 
Other Entertainment falling within Act - Indoors  

9



 

Monday to Thursday 10.00 to 00.00, Friday and Saturday 10.00 to 01.00, Sunday 12.00 to 
00.00 – PLUS: A further additional hour into the morning following every Fri, Sat, Sun and 
Mon for each May Bank Holiday, Spring/Whitsun Bank Holiday, and every August Bank 
Holiday weekend.  A further additional hour into the morning following every Thurs, Fri, Sat, 
Sun and Mon for the Easter Bank Holiday weekend.  A further additional hour every 
Christmas Eve and Boxing Day, to reflect existing New Year's Eve/Day hours. 
Sale by Retail of Alcohol  
Monday to Thursday 10.00 to 00.00, Friday and Saturday 10.00 to 01.00, Sunday 12.00 to 
00.00 – PLUS: A further additional hour into the morning following every Fri, Sat, Sun and 
Mon for each May Bank Holiday, Spring/Whitsun Bank Holiday, and every August Bank 
Holiday weekend.  A further additional hour into the morning following every Thurs, Fri, Sat, 
Sun and Mon for the Easter Bank Holiday weekend.  A further additional hour every 
Christmas Eve and Boxing Day, to reflect existing New Year's Eve/Day hours. 

 

The opening hours of the premises 
Monday - Thursday: 10.00 - 00.30, Friday - Saturday: 10.00 - 01.30, Sunday: 12.00 - 00.30. A 
further additional hour into the morning following every Friday, Saturday, Sunday and Monday 
for each May Bank Holiday, Spring/Whitsun Bank Holiday and every August Bank Holiday 
weekend.  A further additional hour into the morning following every Thursday, Friday, 
Saturday, Sunday and Monday for the Easter Bank Holiday weekend.  An additional hour 
every Christmas Eve and Boxing Day.  To reflect existing New Year's Eve/Day hours. 

 

Where the licence authorises supplies of alcohol whether these are on and / or off 
supplies 
Alcohol is supplied for consumption both on and off the Premises.   
 

 
Part 2 
 

Name, (registered) address, telephone number and email (where relevant) of holder of 
premises licence 
 

Admiral Taverns (Nevada) Limited 
150 Aldersgate Street 
London 
EC1A 4EJ 

 

Registered number of holder, for example company number, charity number (where 
applicable) 
Registered number 06076004 

 

Name of designated premises supervisor where the premises licence authorises for 
the supply of alcohol 
 

Joseph Noonan  

 

Personal licence number and issuing authority of personal licence held by designated 
premises supervisor where the premises licence authorises for the supply of alcohol 
 

10



 

 
 
 
Annex 1 – Mandatory conditions 

S 19; mandatory conditions where licence authorises supply of alcohol 

- no supply of alcohol may be made under the premises licence 
(a) at a time when there is no designated premises supervisor in respect of 

the premises, or 
(b) at a time when the designated premises supervisor does not hold a 

personal licence or his personal licence is suspended 
- every supply of alcohol under the premises licence must be made or authorised 

by a person who holds a personal licence 
 
Embedded Conditions: 
Alcohol shall not be sold or supplied except during permitted hours. 
  
Restrictions 

The above restrictions do not prohibit: 

d) consumption of alcohol on the premises or the taking of sale or supply of alcohol to any 
person residing in the licensed premises; 
e) the ordering of alcohol to be consumed off the premises, or the despatch by the vendor 
of alcohol so ordered; 
f) the sale of alcohol to a trader or club for the purposes of the trade or club; 
g) the sale or supply of alcohol to any canteen or mess, being a canteen in which the sale 
or supply of alcohol is carried out under the authority of the Secretary of State or an 
authorised mess of members of Her Majesty’s naval, military or air forces; 
h) the taking of alcohol from the premises by a person residing there; or 
i) the supply of alcohol for consumption on the premises to any private friends of a person 
residing there who are bona fide entertained by him at his own expense, or the 
consumption of alcohol by persons so supplied; or 
j) the supply of alcohol for consumption on the premises to persons employed there for the 
purposes of the business carried on by the holder of the licence, or the consumption of 
alcohol so supplied, if the liquor is supplied at the expense of their employer or of the 
person carrying on or in charge of the business on the premises. 
 

2. Premises with no children’s certificate 

No person under fourteen shall be in the bar of the licensed premises during the permitted 
hours unless one of the following applies: 
a) He is the child of the holder of the premises licence. 
b) He resides in the premises, but is not employed there. 
c) He is in the bar solely for the purpose of passing to or from some part of the premises 
which is not a bar and to or from which there is no other convenient means of access or 
egress. 
d) The bar is in railway refreshment rooms or other premises constructed, fitted and 
intended to be used bona fide for any purpose to which the holding of the licence is 
ancillary. 
 

In this condition “bar” includes any place exclusively or mainly used for the consumption of 
alcohol. But an area is not a bar when it is usual for it to be, and it is, set apart for the 

11



 

service of table meals and alcohol is only sold or supplied to persons as an ancillary to 
their table meals. 

Source Section 168,171 and 201 Licensing Act 1964 
 

4. Late Night Refreshment 

The Licence may also provide and permit the consumption of late night refreshment for a 
period of 30 minutes after the permitted hours set out above, and on New Years Eve until 
5am on New Years Day. 

 
Variations to Embedded Conditions: 
Reference to previous hours of alcohol sale removed. 
 
 
Annex 2 – Conditions consistent with the Operating Schedule 
 
For the prevention of crime and disorder: 
 

Suitable illumination will be provided to the exterior areas of the building. 
 
Toilets will be checked regularly. 
 
There will be a managed exit policy, under which customers will be asked to leave quietly 
and in an orderly manner. 
 
For public safety: 
 

Suitable extractors and smoke filters will be installed to provide, as far as is practicable, a 
smoke free environment within the premises. 
 
Mechanical extraction will be provided in each bar. 
 
A licensed taxi service will be promoted for customers to facilitate their onward journeys. 
  
For the prevention of public nuisance: 
 

Regular noise surveys will be carried out by staff, especially when entertainment is being 
provided. 
 
Staff will organise taxis for customers when required to take them from the premises. 
 
Customers will be seen off the premises when appropriate and encouraged to disperse 
from outside the building. 
 
Standard drinking glasses will be phased out and replaced with ones made of toughened 
glass. 
 
The cellar cooling condenser will be suitably positioned and effectively sound-proofed so 
as not to cause nuisance to neighbours. 
 
A sign will be place at each exit saying “Please respect our neighbours and leave quietly”. 

12



 

 
For the protection of children from harm: 
 

Children unaccompanied by an adult will not be permitted on the premises. 
 
Annex 3 – Conditions attached after a hearing by the licensing authority – N/A 

13



 

 

 

Annex 4 – Plans 

 

 

14



 

APPENDIX B 

 

 

 

15



 

 

 

16



 

 

17



 

 

18



 

 

19



 

 

20



 

 

21



 

 

22



 

 

 

23



 

 

 

24



 

  

 

25



 

 

 

26



 

 

27



 

 

28



 

 

 

29



 

 

 

 

30



 

 

 

31



 

 

 

32



 

 

 

33



 

 

 

34



 

 

 

35



 

 

 

36



 

 

 

37



 

 

 

38



 

 

 

39



 

 

 

 

40



 

 

 

 

41



 

 

 

42



 

 

 

 

43



 

 

 

44



 

 

 

45



 

 

 

46



 

 

 

47



 

 

 

48



 

 

 

49



 

 

 

 

50



 

 

 

51



 

 

 

52



 

 

 

53



 

 

 

 

54



 

 

 

 

55



 

 

 

 

56



 

 

 

57



 

 

 

58



 

 

 

59



 

 

 

60



 

 

 

 

61



 

APPENDIX C 

 

 

62



 

 

 

63



 

 

 

64



 

 

 

65



 

 

 

 

66



 

 

 

67



 

APPENDIX C 

 

68



Licensing Panel  

(Licensing Act 2003 Functions) 

Agenda Item 109 

Brighton & Hove City Council 

 

 

Subject: Application for a Variation of a Premises Licence 
under the Licensing Act 2003 for Bowlplex 
Brighton Marina Village, Brighton, BN2 5UT 

Date of Meeting: 16 February 2009 

Report of: Assistant Director Public Safety 

Contact Officer: Name:  Becky Keely Tel: 29-2100 

 E-mail: becky.keely @brighton-hove.gov.uk 

Wards Affected:  Rottingdean Coastal 

 
FOR GENERAL RELEASE 

 
1. SUMMARY AND POLICY CONTEXT: 

  
1.1 To determine an application for a Variation of a Premises Licence under 

the Licensing Act 2003 for Bowlplex. 
 
2. RECOMMENDATIONS: 

  
2.1 To determine an application for a Variation of a Premises Licence under 

the Licensing Act 2003 for Bowlplex. 
 
2.2 The application is for: 

 
A Variation of a Premises Licence under the Licensing Act 2003 for 
Bowlplex. 

 
The variation proposes:  
 
Amendment to Annex 2 Conditions 1 and 2 Prevention of Crime and 
Disorder objectives regarding doorstaff as follows:- 
 
On Friday and Saturday evenings from 2000 hours until the closing time of 
the venue a minimum of 2 SIA registered door staff will be employed at 
any time if 250 customers or more are likely to be present at any one time 
or are present at any one time. 
 
Conditions 1 and 2 under the heading ‘The Protection of Children from 
Harm’ are proposed to be amended so as to alter the restrictions on 
children being in the premises during the evening period. 

69



 
2.3 Summary table of existing and proposed activities  

 

 Existing  Proposed 

C Indoor 
Sporting 
Events 

Ten-pin bowling is the 
primary activity of the 
complex but is for the 
entertainment of the 
players.  Very 
occasionally, on a 
maximum of two 
occasions per annum 
there may be bowling 
tournaments that will be 
attended by some 
spectators. There are no 
standard timings.  If 
tournaments take place it 
will be during the opening 
hours of the premises.  

PLUS From 09.00 on 
New Year's Eve until 
02.30 on 1 January every 
year when New Year's 
Eve does not fall on a 
Friday or a Saturday 

As existing. No change. 

E Live music Indoors  

There may be very 
occasional employment 
of live bands to perform 
music for dancing. 

There will be no standard 
timings because it will be 
occasional.  It will always 
take place during the 
hours for dancing.  

PLUS From 09.00 on 
New Year's Eve until 
02.30 on 1 January every 
year when New Year's 
Eve does not fall on a 
Friday or a Saturday 

As existing. No change. 

70



F Recorded 
Music  

Indoors  
Sunday - Wednesday: 
09.00 - 00.30,  
Thursday: 09.00 - 01.00, 
Friday and Saturday: 
09.00 - 02.30 

Background music may 
be played at all times 
throughout the premises 
but recorded music will 
be used to provide 
musical entertainment for 
dancing as and when 
required.  

PLUS From 09.00 on 
New Year's Eve until 
02.30 on 1 January every 
year when New Year's 
Eve does not fall on a 
Friday or a Saturday. 

As existing. No change. 

I Provision of 
facilities for 
making music 

Indoors  
Sunday - Wednesday: 
09.00 - 00.30,  
Thursday: 09.00 - 01.00, 
Friday and Saturday: 
09.00 - 02.30  

The premises will have 
sound systems which are 
used to distribute the 
recorded music to 
speakers throughout the 
premises.  

PLUS From 09.00 on 
New Year's Eve until 
02.30 on 1 January every 
year when New Year's 
Eve does not fall on a 
Friday or a Saturday. 

As existing. No change. 

71



J Provision of 
facilities for 
dancing 

Indoors  
Sunday - Wednesday: 
09.00 - 00.30,  
Thursday: 09.00 - 01.00, 
Friday and Saturday: 
09.00 - 02.30.  

The part of the premises 
to be used for dancing is 
the dance floor as shown 
on the plan. PLUS From 
09.00 on New Year's Eve 
until 02.30 on 1 January 
every year when New 
Year's Eve does not fall 
on a Friday or a 
Saturday. 

As existing. No change. 

L Late Night 
Refreshment 

Indoors  
Sunday - Wednesday: 
23.00 - 00.30, 
Thursday: 23.00 - 01.00, 
Friday and Saturday: 
23.00 - 02.30  

Both hot and cold food 
and drinks may be 
provided during the times 
set out. 

PLUS From 09.00 on 
New Year's Eve until 
02.30 on 1 January every 
year when New Year's 
Eve does not fall on a 
Friday or a Saturday. 

As existing. No change. 

M Supply of 
Alcohol 

On the premises  

Sunday - Wednesday: 
10.00 - 00.30, Thursday: 
10.00 - 01.00, Friday and 
Saturday: 10.00 - 02.30. 
PLUS From 09.00 on 
New Year's Eve until 
02.30 on 1 January every 
year when New Year's 
Eve does not fall on a 
Friday or a Saturday. 

As existing. No change. 

72



O Hours 
premises are 
open to public 

Sunday - Wednesday: 
09.00 – 01.00,  
Thursday: 09.00 - 01.30, 
Friday and Saturday: 
09.00 – 03.00.  

PLUS: From 09.00 on 
New Year's Eve until 
02.30 on 1 January every 
year when New Year's 
Eve does not fall on a 
Friday or a Saturday. 

 As existing. No change. 

P Conditions 
removed as a 
consequence 
of the 
proposed 
Variation 

It is proposed only to amend the existing conditions 
relating to doorstaff and the admission of children to 
the premises in the evening period as shown in the 
Operating Schedule P and listed below: 
 
1. Persons under 16 years old will not be permitted to 

enter the premises after 21:00 hours unless that 
person is accompanied by a responsible adult. 

1.A Persons over 16 but under 18 will not be 
permitted to enter the premises after 23:00 hours 
unless that person is accompanied by an adult. 
2. At 21:00 hours persons under 16 years old who are 
not accompanied by a responsible adult and who are 
still in the Centre will be required to leave the 
premises. 
2.A At 23:-- hours persons over 16 but under 18 who 
are not accompanied by a responsible adult and who 
are still in the Centre will be required to leave the 
premises. 
 
Amendment to Annex 2 Conditions 1 and 2 Prevention 
of Crime and Disorder objectives regarding doorstaff 
as follows:- 

 
On Friday and Saturday evenings from 2000 hours 
until the closing time of the venue a minimum of 2 SIA 
registered door staff will be employed at any time if 
250 customers or more are likely to be present at any 
one time or are present at any one time. 

 

Conditions 1 and 2 under the heading ‘The Protection 
of Children from Harm’ are proposed to be amended 
so as to alter the restrictions on children being in the 
premises during the evening period. 

 

73



3. RELEVANT BACKGROUND INFORMATION/CHRONOLOGY OF KEY 
EVENTS: 

 
3.1 This premises does not fall in the Cumulative Impact Area or the Special 

Stress Areas. 
 
3.2.1 Representations received 

 
Details of the representations made are notified to applicants on receipt by 
the Licensing Authority using a pro-forma.  A summary appears below: 

 
3.2.2 One representation was received from Sussex Police. 
   
3.2.3 The representation received had concerns relating to Prevention of Crime 

and Disorder, and Protection of Children from Harm. 
 
4. CONSULTATION 
 
 Commentary on licensing policy  
 
4.1 The following extracts from Brighton & Hove Licensing Policy are 

considered relevant to this application and numbered as they appear in 
the policy: 
 

General 
 

1.2 The licensing objectives are:- 
(a) Prevention of crime and disorder; 
(b) Public safety; 
(c) Prevention of public nuisance; 
(d) Protection of children from harm. 

 
1.3 Licensing is about regulating licensable activities on licensed 

premises, by qualifying clubs and at temporary events. Any 
conditions attached to various authorisations will be focussed on 
matters which are in the control of individual licensees and others 
with relevant authorisations, i.e. the premises and its vicinity. 

 
1.5 Each application will be given individual consideration on its merit. 

Nothing in this policy shall undermine the right of any individual to 
apply under the terms of the Act for a variety of permissions and to 
have any such application considered on its individual merits. 
Similarly, nothing in this policy shall override the right of any person 
to make representations on an application or seek a review of a 
licence or certificate where provision has been made for them to do 
so in the Act 

 
1.15 Licensing law is not the primary mechanism for the general control 

of nuisance and anti-social behaviour by individuals once they are 
away from the licensed premises and, therefore, beyond the direct 

74



control of the individual, club or business holding the licence, 
certificate or authorisation concerned. Licensing is about the control 
of licensed premises, qualifying clubs and temporary events within 
the terms of the Act, and the conditions attached to licences, 
certificates and permissions will be focused on matters which are 
within the control of the licensee and will centre on the premises 
themselves and their immediate vicinity. When considering these 
terms and conditions the licensing authority will primarily focus on 
the direct impact of the activities taking place at the licensed 
premises on members of the public living, working or engaged in 
normal activity in the area concerned.  

 
In respect of the prevention of crime and disorder 

 
2.2 The licensing authority acknowledges that training and good 

management play a key part in preventing alcohol and drug related 
crime.  The authority recommends that all licensees of on-licensed 
premises attend training programmes which will raise their 
awareness of the issues relating to drugs and violence in licensed 
premises, and that suitable training be extended to all bar staff and 
door staff so that drug dealers and users will be deterred from 
using licensed premises for illegal purposes and that incidents of 
violence in licensed premises will be reduced.  Licensees are also 
encouraged to attend training programmes to help identify children 
at risk and issues of basic child protection. 

 
2.3 It is expected that the designated premises supervisor (DPS) will 

spend a significant amount of time on the premises. When not on 
the premises it will be essential that the DPS is contactable, 
particularly should problems arise with the premises. 

 
2.5.1 Diversity of premises 

This attempts to ensure that there is a mix of the different types of 
licensed premises, particularly in areas where there is a high 
density of such premises.  It will provide resilience against 
changing trends and attract a more diverse range of customers 
from different age groups, different communities of interest and with 
different attitudes to alcohol consumption.  It gives potential for 
positively changing the ambience of the city or an area of it.  This in 
turn may have a positive effect in reducing people’s fear of crime 
and in increasing the number of evening visitors to the city centre. 
The Community Safety Strategy recognises that too many single 
uses in a confined area and patrons turning out onto the streets at 
the same time, may create opportunities for violent crime and 
public disorder and therefore encourages mixed use venues, 
varying hours of business and a wider age balance. 

 
2.5.4 Geographical spread 

Spreading the siting of large venues (those with a capacity in 
excess of 250 people) across the city reduces the problems of 

75



dispersing large numbers of people leaving premises in close 
proximity at the same time.  Taxi and bus queues can be flash 
points for public disorder and violence.  A good geographical 
spread coupled with increased taxi ranks and bus stops near 
venues reduces waiting time and the potential for crime and 
disorder. 

 
2.5.5 Care, control and supervision of premises 

The effective management and supervision of a venue is a key 
factor in reducing crime and disorder, both within it and outside.  
The Police will consider the applicants, objecting to the application 
where appropriate. The Police will suggest crime prevention 
measures in relation to, for example, the internal layout of the 
premises, close circuit television, help points, lighting and security 
staff.  The Police may ask for conditions which support such 
measures to be imposed when planning or licensing applications 
are granted, e.g. type of licence, capacity, opening time restrictions. 

 
2.8 Enforcement issues will be considered in the light of any relevant 

enforcement policies and close links will be sought between all 
enforcing authorities, e.g. through the use of intelligence sharing 
and strategy groups. Such protocols may lead to the targeting of 
agreed high risk and problem premises whilst permitting a lighter 
touch approach in respect of well run premises. 

 
In respect of the protection of children from harm 

 
5.1 Licensees should note the concern of the authority that drink 

related disorder frequently involves under 18’s.  To prevent illegal 
purchases of alcohol by such persons, the committee recommend 
that all licensees should work with a suitable ‘proof of age’ scheme 
and ensure that appropriate identification is requested prior to entry 
and when requesting alcohol, where appropriate.  Appropriate 
forms of identification are currently considered to be those 
recommended by police, trading standards officers and their 
partners in the licensing strategy group. 

 
5.2 It is the committee’s expectation that all staff responsible for the 

sale of intoxicating liquor receive information and advice on the 
licensing laws relating to children and young persons in licensed 
premises. Licensed premises staff are required to take reasonable 
steps to prevent under age sales. The licensing authority will not 
seek to limit the access of children to any premises unless it is 
necessary for the prevention of physical, moral or psychological 
harm to them.   

 
5.4 The licensing authority will not seek to require that access to any 

premises is given to children at all times – under normal 
circumstances this will be left to the discretion of the licensee. The 

76



following areas give rise to concern in respect of children, who will 
normally be excluded from premises:-  

 

• where there have been convictions for serving alcohol to minors 
or with a reputation for underage drinking; 

• with a known association with drug taking or dealing; 

• where there is a strong element of gambling on the premises; 

• where entertainment of an adult or sexual nature is commonly 
provided. 

• where premises are used primarily or exclusively for the sale 
and consumption of alcohol and there is little or no seating for 
patrons 

 
Options may include:- 

• limitations on the hours when children may be present; 

• age limitations (below 18); 

• limitations or exclusions when certain activities are taking place; 

• requirements for an accompanying adult; 

• full exclusion of people under 18. 
 

5.6 Where children are expected to attend a public entertainment, 
appropriate adult supervision will be required to control the access 
and egress of children and to protect them from harm.  This will 
normally be an adult member of staff for every 100 children.  Where 
the entertainment is music and dancing, 2 persons, licensed by the 
Security Industry Authority (door supervisors) should be employed 
for every 100 children. Nothing in this policy shall seek to override 
child supervision requirements contained in other legislation or 
regulations.  The licensing authority recognises the Children, 
Families and Schools section as being competent to advise on 
matters relating to the protection of children from harm. 

 
Strategic Integration 

 
6.5 Specific conditions may be attached to premises licences to reflect 

local crime prevention strategies.  Such conditions may include the 
use of closed circuit television cameras, the provision and use of 
shatterproof drinking receptacles, drugs and weapons search 
policy, the use of registered door supervisors, specialised lighting 
requirements, hours of opening. 

 
6.7 This policy avoids duplication with other regulatory regimes 

wherever possible. 
 

In respect of Live music, Dancing and Theatre 
 

7.1 This policy recognises the need to encourage live music, dancing 
and theatre for the wider cultural benefits of the community 
generally.  In addressing such issues the potential for limited 

77



disturbance in neighbourhoods will always be carefully balanced 
with these wider benefits, particularly for children. The impact of 
licensing on regulated entertainment, particularly live music and 
dancing, will be monitored.  Where indications are that such events 
are being deterred by licensing requirements, the policy will be 
revisited with a view to investigating how such situations might be 
reversed. 

 
7.2 The Licensing Committee represents the general interests of a 

community.  In determining what conditions should be attached to 
licences and certificates as a matter of necessity for the promotion 
of the licensing objectives.  The Licensing authority is aware of the 
need to avoid measures which deter live music, dancing and 
theatre - such as imposing indirect costs out of proportion to the 
income of the licence holder and to the risks presented. Only 
necessary, proportionate and reasonable licensing conditions 
should impose any restrictions on such events. 

 
5. FINANCIAL & OTHER IMPLICATIONS: 
 
5.1 Financial Implications: 
 

The Licensing Act 2003 provides for fees to be payable to the licensing 
authority in respect of the discharge of their functions. The fee levels are 
set centrally at a level to allow licensing authorities to fully recover the 
costs of administration, inspection and enforcement of the regime.  

  

Finance Officer Consulted:  Karen Brookshaw      Date:  30.01.2009 
 
5.2 Legal Implications: 
 

 
The licensing authority must act to promote the four licensing objectives 
which are: 

 

• The prevention of crime and disorder 

• Public safety 

• The prevention of public nuisance 

• The protection of children from harm 
 
 

  The licensing authority must have regard to its statement of licensing 
police and the guidance issued by the Secretary of State in carrying out its 
functions. 

 

 Lawyer Consulted: Rebecca Sidell  Date:  30.01.2009 
 
5.3 Equalities Implications: 
 

 Diversity is valued and strong, safe communities are vital to future prosperity. 
Licensing policy aims to protect children from harm including sale and supply of 
alcohol to children. 

78



 
5.4 Sustainability Implications: 
 

  Licensing policy aims to prevent public nuisance and develop culture of live 
music, dancing and theatre. 

 
5.5 Crime & Disorder Implications:  
 

 Licensing policy aims to prevent crime and disorder and protect public 
safety. 

 
5.6 Risk and Opportunity Management Implications:  
 

  Licensing is a crucial business and employment opportunity and unnecessary 
regulation might lead to legal challenge. 

 
5.7 Corporate / Citywide Implications: 

 

The success of the city’s tourism strategy requires a safe, attractive city 
centre to improve competitiveness. The Act may significantly change night 
time economy 

79



SUPPORTING DOCUMENTATION 
 

Appendices: 
 
1. Appendix A – Part P of application. 
 
2. Appendix B – Map of area. 
 
3. Appendix C – Part A of Premises Licence  
 

 
Documents in Members’ Rooms 

 
1. Environmental Health & Licensing Service, Brighton & Hove City 

Council (2008): The Licensing Act 2003 – Brighton & Hove City 
Council: Statement of Licensing Policy. 

  
 

Background Documents 
 
1. Environmental Health & Licensing Service, Brighton & Hove City 

Council (2008): The Licensing Act 2003 – Brighton & Hove City Council 
Statement on Licensing Policy. 

   

80



APPENDIX A 

 

81



82



APPENDIX B 

 

83



APPENDIX C 
 

Schedule 12 
 Part A Regulation 33, 34 

 

Premises Licence 
Brighton and Hove City Council 

 

Premises Licence Number 1445/3/2005/03186/LAPREV 

 
Part 1 – Premises Details 

 

Postal address of premises, or if none, ordnance survey map reference or description, 
including Post Town, Post Code 
 
Bowlplex 
Brighton Marina   
Brighton 
East Sussex 
BN2 5US 
 

Telephone number  01273 818180 

 

Where the licence is time limited the dates 
N/A 

 

Licensable activities authorised by the licence  
Indoor Sporting Event    Performance of Live Music  
Performance of Recorded Music   Making music  
Dancing      Late Night Refreshment  
Sale by Retail of Alcohol  

 

Times the licence authorises the carrying out of licensable activities:-  
 
Indoor Sporting Event    
Ten-pin bowling is the primary activity of the complex but is for the entertainment of the 
players.  Very occasionally, on a maximum of two occasions per annum there may be bowling 
tournaments that will be attended by some spectators. There are no standard timings.  If 
tournaments take place it will be during the opening hours of the premises. PLUS From 09.00 
on New Year's Eve until 02.30 on 1 January every year when New Year's Eve does not fall on 
a Friday or a Saturday 
 
Performance of Live Music - Indoors  
There may be very occasional employment of live bands to perform music for dancing. 
There will be no standard timings because it will be occasional.  It will always take place 
during the hours for dancing. PLUS From 09.00 on New Year's Eve until 02.30 on 1 January 
every year when New Year's Eve does not fall on a Friday or a Saturday 

84



Performance of Recorded Music - Indoors  
Sunday - Wednesday: 09.00 - 00.30, Thursday: 09.00 - 01.00, Friday and Saturday: 09.00 - 
02.30 
Background music may be played at all times throughout the premises but recorded music 
will be used to provide musical entertainment for dancing as and when required. PLUS From 
09.00 on New Year's Eve until 02.30 on 1 January every year when New Year's Eve does not 
fall on a Friday or a Saturday. 
 
Making music - Indoors  
Sunday - Wednesday: 09.00 - 00.30, Thursday: 09.00 - 01.00, Friday and Saturday: 09.00 - 
02.30 The premises will have sound systems which are used to distribute the recorded music 
to speakers throughout the premises. PLUS From 09.00 on New Year's Eve until 02.30 on 1 
January every year when New Year's Eve does not fall on a Friday or a Saturday. 
 

Dancing - Indoors  
Sunday - Wednesday: 09.00 - 00.30, Thursday: 09.00 - 01.00, Friday and Saturday: 09.00 - 
02.30. The part of the premises to be used for dancing is the dance floor as shown on the 
plan. PLUS From 09.00 on New Year's Eve until 02.30 on 1 January every year when New 
Year's Eve does not fall on a Friday or a Saturday. 
 

Late Night Refreshment - Indoors  
Sunday - Wednesday: 23.00 - 00.30, Thursday: 23.00 - 01.00, Friday and Saturday: 23.00 - 
02.30 Both hot and cold food and drinks may be provided during the times set out. PLUS 
From 09.00 on New Year's Eve until 02.30 on 1 January every year when New Year's Eve 
does not fall on a Friday or a Saturday. 
 

Sale by Retail of Alcohol - On the premises  
Sunday - Wednesday: 10.00 - 00.30, Thursday: 10.00 - 01.00, Friday and Saturday: 10.00 - 
02.30. PLUS From 09.00 on New Year's Eve until 02.30 on 1 January every year when New 
Year's Eve does not fall on a Friday or a Saturday. 
 

 

The opening hours of the premises 
 
Sunday - Wednesday: 09.00 – 01.00, Thursday: 09.00 - 01.30, Friday and Saturday: 09.00 – 
03.00. From 09.00 on New Year's Eve until 02.30 on 1 January every year when New Year's 
Eve does not fall on a Friday or a Saturday. 
 

 

Where the licence authorises supplies of alcohol whether these are on and / or off 
supplies 
 
Alcohol is supplied for consumption on the Premises. 
 

 
 

85



Part 2 
 

Name, (registered) address, telephone number and email (where relevant) of holder of 
premises licence 
 
Bowlplex Plc  
Dean Park House 
8-10 Dean Park Crescent 
Bournemouth 
Dorset 
BH1 1HL 
Tel: 01202 638210 
 

 

Registered number of holder, for example company number, charity number (where 
applicable) 
 
Registered Business Number 1250332 
 

 

Name of designated premises supervisor where the premises licence authorises for 
the supply of alcohol 
  
Tim Paul Williams 
 

 

Personal licence number and issuing authority of personal licence held by designated 
premises supervisor where the premises licence authorises for the supply of alcohol 
 

86



Annex 1 – Mandatory conditions 
 
S 19; mandatory conditions where licence authorises supply of alcohol 

- no supply of alcohol may be made under the premises licence 
(a) at a time when there is no designated premises supervisor in respect of 

the premises, or 
(b) at a time when the designated premises supervisor does not hold a 

personal licence or his personal licence is suspended 
- every supply of alcohol under the premises licence must be made or 

authorised by a person who holds a personal licence 
 
S 21; mandatory condition: door supervision 

- where a premises licence includes a condition relating to security activity, 
the licence must include a condition that each individual must be licensed 
by the Security Industry Authority (there are exemptions re theatre and 
films and clubs) 

 
Embedded Conditions: 
 
On Licence 
 
Alcohol may be sold or supplied from the end of permitted hours on New Year’s Eve to the 
start of permitted hours on the following day. 
 
Public Entertainment Licence 
 
The number of persons permitted on the licensed premises at any one time shall not 
exceed 500. 
 
All other conditions and restrictions removed. 
 
Variations to Embedded Conditions: 
 
Annex 2 – Conditions consistent with the Operating Schedule 
 
For the prevention of crime and disorder: 
 

1. On Friday and Saturday evenings a minimum of 2 SIA registered door staff will be 
provided at the premises from 19.00 and a minimum of 4 SIA registered door staff from 
20.00 until closure. 

 

2. On Sunday to Thursday inclusive a minimum of 2 SIA registered door staff will be 
employed at any time if 250 customers or more are present or are likely to be present 
at any one time. 

 

3. The company will meet with the Police and Licensing Authority officials as and when 
necessary to ensure any new local crime prevention strategies are taken into account. 
Any measures agreed in writing between the company and any responsible authorities 
will be implemented and notified to the Licensing Authority. 

 

For public safety: 
 

1. The maximum occupancy figure of 500 will continue to apply. 

87



 

2. Any measures agreed in writing between the company and any responsible authorities 
will be implemented and notified to the Licensing Authority. 

 

For the prevention of public nuisance: 
 

1. Any measures agreed in writing between the company and any responsible authorities 
will be implemented and notified to the Licensing Authority. 

 

For the protection of children from harm: 
 

1 Entry to under 18 year olds after 21.00 will be prohibited unless the person is 
accompanied by a responsible adult. 

 

2 At 21.00 any under 18 year old not accompanied by an adult still in the centre will be 
asked to leave. 

  

3 Access to the bar area will be prohibited to under 18 year olds.  
 

4 The company will continue to operate its proof of age scheme where there are any 
doubts about the age of an individual seeking to purchase alcoholic liquor. 
The only proof of age documents that will be accepted are: 

 
a photographic driving licence (which will be checked to ensure that the licence 
holder is not in possession of a provisional driving licence and still under 18); 

 

 a passport; 
 
 an accredited proof of age card bearing the ‘PASS’ mark hologram. 
 

No other form of ID will be accepted unless by prior agreement jointly by the Licensing 
Authority and the Police. 
 
All staff and management at the premises will be trained and undertake to check 
physically and examine all proof of age documentation presented to them to check their 
authenticity and that the date of birth shown on the ID confirms that the person is 
genuinely over 18 years of age. 
 

5 All cash gaming machines on the premises will be closely supervised and situated 
within direct line of sight of staff both fixed and mobile. No children will be allowed to 
play on them. 

 
6 Any measures agreed in writing between the company and any responsible authorities 

will be implemented and notified to the Licensing Authority. 
 
 
Annex 3 – Conditions attached after a hearing by the licensing authority 
 
N/A 

88



 

Annex 4 – Plans 

 

 

 

 

 

 

 

 

 

 

 

 

 

 

 

89



90



91



92



93



94


	Agenda
	108 The Black Horse, 16-17 Montague Place, Brighton, BN2 1JE
	The Black Horse Appendices

	109 Bowlplex, Brighton Marina Village, Brighton, BN2 5UT
	REP A FULL 2


